
The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created 
under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

community-wide infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
4:15 P.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile



AGENDA 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Thousand Oaks HOA Office 

1034 Center Stone Lane 

Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

November 13, 2023 

4:15 p.m. 

A. Call to Order

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Moment of Silence

D. Establish Quorum

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda/ Board Member Disclosures

F. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda

G. Approval of Minutes

1. September 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………………….Page 3 

2. October 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………………...Page 8 

H. Old Business

1. Update on Newsletter and Website

2. Update on Fountain Installation

3. Update Regarding Encroachment Issue

4. Update on National Village Tree Trimming

5. Update on 1277 Rosegate Blvd. Swell Issue

6. Update on Fence Line Maintenance (Northen/Western)

a. Discussion Regarding hiring a Land Surveyor

7. Update on Resident’s Outstanding Bill from Statewide Grading, LLC

I. New Business

1. Consider Approval of Tree Trim Proposals along Congress……………………………………...Page 16 

2. Discussion Regarding Pressure Cleaning of Sidewalk along Congress…………………………..Page 23 

3. Consider Approval of Preserve/Dry Conservation Area Proposals……………………………….Page 25 

4. Discussion Regarding Fencing Repair/Replace along Walmart Side

5. Consider Approval of National Village Fenceline Tree Trim……………………………………..Page 28 

J. Auditor Selection Committee

1. Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor…………………………………………...Page 29 

K. Administrative Matters

L. Attorney Matters

M. Board Members Comments

N. Adjourn



Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 1 of 4 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The October 9, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 4:15 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks’ HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone 
Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Palm Beach Post on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Jeff Jackson, Vice Chairman Rance Gaede and 
Supervisors Malachi Knowles and Horace Towns. 
  
Staff present included District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Bethel indicated that she had 2 items to add under New Business:  Discussion Regarding Preserve/Dry 
Conservation Area Maintenance and Discussion Regarding Tree Trimming in Front of Thousand Oaks 
along Congress. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gaede, seconded by Mr. Knowles and passed unanimously adding the above 
referenced items to the agenda. 
 
F.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  September 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the September 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
Mr. Knowles asked if these were the minutes when the Board made a motion that funds be paid to the HOA. 
HOA.  Ms. Bethel said they were.  Mr. Knowles asked about the documentation and Ms. Bethel stated that 
Mr. Gaede had sent his Form 8B in and was waiting on Mr. Jackson.  Mr. Jackson stated he would fill it 
out immediately and Mr. Knowles suggested this item be tabled until all documentation is included in the 
next meeting book.  

Page 13



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Funds Owed to HOA Regarding Fence Line Tree Trimming 
 
Mr. Jackson asked Ms. Bethel for an update. Ms. Bethel stated that when she last spoke with Mr. Jackson 
he indicated that would have the HOA send over an invoice and that she would get payment in the next 
check run, which would be November 1st. Mr. Jackson stated he would get the invoice to Ms. Bethel 
immediately.  
 
 2.  Update on Newsletter and Website 
 
Mr. Jackson advised that this was ongoing and would continue to appear on the agenda. 
 
 3.  Update on Fountain Installation 
 
Ms. Bethel stated that the account had been opened, the date had been set for October 23rd for FPL to come 
out and open the box so the electrician could connect his lines. Once completed, FPL will come back out 
to inspect, and the fountain can be installed.   
 
 4.  Update Regarding Encroachment Issue 
 
Ms. Bethel stated that the contract had been signed at the last meeting and they were now waiting on Mr. 
Wells to complete his report.  
 
 5.  Update on Next Steps for Thousand Oaks’ New Logo 
 
Mr. Jackson advised that this item could be removed from the agenda. 
 
 6.  Update on National Village Tree Trimming 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that she had just spoken with the vendor and he indicated this would be completed 
today. 
 
 7.  Update on 1277 Rosegate Boulevard Swell Issue 
 
Ms. Bethel indicated that Mr. Russ was supposed to contact Mr. Jackson about grinding the stump under 
the resident’s driveway.  Mr. Jackson noted that Mr. Russ had not contacted him yet.  Ms. Bethel advised 
she would follow up with Mr. Russ and also noted that she was waiting for the vendor to send a proposal 
for the concrete.  
 
 8.  Update on Fence Line Maintenance (Northern/Western) 
 
Ms. Bethel advised she had received conflicting information about ownership of this area. The first person 
that she spoke with said it was the City’s responsibility and they would get it on the schedule for 
maintenance.  The second person stated that it was Thousand Oaks’ property and it was their responsibility 
to maintain it.  Ms. Bethel advised she was awaiting a follow-up call from the gentleman from the City for 
clarification.  Mr. Jackson stated that Thousand Oaks does not own the canal embankment outside the 
community and directed Ms. Bethel to follow-up with the City and get whatever is said in writing.  
 

Page 14



Page 3 of 4 
 

 9.  Update on Resident’s Outstanding Bill from Statewide Grading, LLC 
 
Ms. Bethel referred the Board to a printout the attorney had prepared. The Board discussed and approved 
the letter with a few corrections.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gaede, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving the 
Reimbursement of Repair Cost letter from Mr. Palen to Thousand Oaks Resident, Ms. Davis with the 
following corrections: remove “such childish” and add any attorney expenses incurred are to be paid by the 
resident.   
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Preserve/Dry Conservation Area Maintenance 
 
Ms. Bethel stated that in her previous discussions with Mr. Jackson, he indicated that it was time for 
maintenance of this area again and discussed receiving a proposal from Mr. Russ because he did it last year 
and was familiar with the does and don’ts for cutting the area.  Ms. Bethel asked the Board to review the 
printout of the proposals.  After discussion the Board decided they would like to get a few more proposals. 
Mr. Jackson asked that Ms. Bethel send the does and don’ts on cutting the preserve/dry conservation area 
out to the Board.  
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Tree Trimming in Front of Thousand Oaks along Congress 
 
Ms. Bethel stated that when she spoke with Mr. Jackson, he indicated that the City had contacted them to 
trim the trees in front of the community along Congress. Mr. Jackson sent over a proposal from GreenBlade.  
He will send Ms. Bethel the other contact for a proposal and requested that she obtain another proposal. 
Ms. Bethel indicated she requested a proposal from Only Trees and was waiting on Mr. Jackson’s other 
contact.  Mr. Jackson stated that management should have a scope for the vendors. Ms. Bethel stated she 
would meet with Mr. Jackson this week to further discuss.  
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative Matters to come before the Board.  
 
K. ATTORNEY MATTERS 
 
There were no Attorney Matters. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Knowles stated there were several other organizations that relate closer to the community development 
district rather than the FASD conference, such as, the National League of Cities, which he thinks the Board 
should really look into attending.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
4:58 p.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 

Page 15



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 16



Estimate
Date

10/12/2023

Estimate No.

13570

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
Tree Services @ Thousand Oaks
Master Association, Inc.
1085 Center Stone Lane
Riviera Beach, FL  33404

ROADSIDE BERM
Sabal Palms Sabal Palms trimmed 112 40.00 4,480.00

Royal Palms Royal Palms trimmed 4 50.00 200.00

Oak Tree th... Live and Laurel Oak Trees-thin and
raise canopies on Thousand Oaks HOA
side only (the part of tree accessible
from the street)

55 105.00 5,775.00

Palm Remo... Sabal Palm Trees Removed/base cut 2 375.00 750.00
NOTE:  Trees have significant decay
and are leaning over sidewalk. 
Removing is recommended as they
pose a risk.

Brazilian Pe... Brazilian Pepper removed/base cut 2 87.50 175.00

Tree Removal Silver Buttonwood Tree Removal/base
cut

2 137.50 275.00

Buttonwood... Silver Buttonwood Tree trimmed 2 137.50 275.00

Page 1
Page 17



Estimate
Date

10/12/2023

Estimate No.

13570

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
Saw Palmet... Saw Palmetto Cluster trimmed back off

sidewalk only
4 50.00 200.00

Cypress Tree Cypress Tree trimmed 4 100.00 400.00

Tree Removal Holly Tree Removal/base cut 9 75.00 675.00

Holly Tree Holly Tree trimmed 8 34.375 275.00

TERMS:
Palm Trees The Palm Trees will be trimmed at the

9-3 o'clock level. The seed pods and
fruit will be removed.

Thin Thin: Selective pruning to reduce
density of live branches

Raise Raise: Selective pruning to provide
vertical clearance

Base Cut Base of tree/stump is the part of a tree
that remains after the main tree is
removed. It was formerly the base of the
tree, which is now gone.

Page 2
Page 18



Estimate
Date

10/12/2023

Estimate No.

13570

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
Owner Per... Owner Permission.  The property owner

warrants that all trees, plant material
and premises upon which work is to be
performed are either owned by him/her
or that permission for the work has been
obtained from the owner. Only Trees,
LLC is to be held harmless from all
claims for costs, loss, damages, liability,
expense, penalty or fine whatsoever
resulting from the customer’s failure to
obtain such permission, including any
such charges due to any suggested or
actual violation or failure to comply with
any laws, statutes, ordinances, and
regulations issued by any private or
public governmental body or
subdivision.

Ansi A300 All work performed by Only Trees, LLC
will be in accordance with the American
National Standards Institute (ANSI)
A300 Standard for Tree Care
Operations unless otherwise noted.

Debris Complete clean-up and debris removal
is included in this estimate/invoice.

Page 3
Page 19



Estimate
Date

10/12/2023

Estimate No.

13570

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
W/C Cert. Our Workers Comp. and General

Liability Insurance certificates will be
faxed to you directly from our carrier
upon your request and  acceptance of
this proposal.

Convenienc... For all credit card transactions Only
Trees LLC will assess a 2.75%
non-refundable convenience fee.

Signature of... Upon the acceptance please sign this
service agreement and fax or e-mail it
back to our office.

Page 4

_____________________________________

$13,480.00

Page 20



GreenBlade Landscaping   Estimate
 PRIDE IN THE ART OF LANDSCAPING  

 

  Evens Dorelus DATE: /17/23 
Phone: (561) 603-3115 
greenbladelandscaping.service@gmail.com   

TO: 

FOR: Palm & Oak  

Tree Pruning and 
cutting

   

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Page 21



1

Sylvia Bethel

From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 10:58 AM
To: Sylvia Bethel
Subject: Tree trimming along Congress

Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  

Thousand Oaks CDD, 
The following is a proposal for the tree trimming on Congress in front of Thousand Oaks Neighborhood in Riviera 
Beach. If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  

Tree Trimming Proposal Introduction 

This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary tree trimming in an effort to 
maintain the beauty and safety of the property. The goal is to maintain a conspicuous landscape for residents and 
visitors. 

R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 

Deliverables 

 Trim 99 Cabbage Palm Trees 
 Elevate and shape 58 Oak Trees 
 5 Pine Trees 
 3 Miscellaneous Trees 
 Remove 11 small Oaks 
 Remove 2 Cabbage Palms 
 Stump Grind existing stumps 
 Dispose of all existing and generated debris 

Compensation 

 Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is: $16,500.00. If approved we would 
like to request $8,250.00 in advance and $8,250.00 upon completion. 

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our company is small enough to 
give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are large enough to handle the equipment and labor 
necessary to do the job right and on time! 

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



1

Sylvia Bethel

From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 1:06 PM
To: Sylvia Bethel
Subject: Dry Conservation Area in Thousand Oaks

Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  

Thousand Oaks CDD,  
The following is the proposal for the tree trimming at 1034 Center Stone Lane in Riviera Beach. Work is to be 
performed in the Dry Conservation area located in the southeast corner of the property. If you should have any 
questions please do not hesitate to contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  

Tree Trimming Proposal Introduction 

This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary Tree Trimming in an effort to 
maintain the natural resources and beauty of the property. The goal is to maintain a conspicuous landscape 
for residents and visitors. 
R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 

Deliverables 

Dry Conservation Area 

 Raising the canopy on all low hanging Live Oak, Mango and other trees throughout designated 
area 

 Intercept all branches protruding toward buildings at lease 10 feet 
 Hurricane prune all Palm trees 
 Remove any dead or diseased trees or branches 

 Safely and completely remove all non-native vegetation throughout 
designated area

 Clear path for safe passage of vehicles 
 Elevate and trim Coco plums throughout area 
 Collect and disposed all generated debris  

Compensation 

 Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is: $18,500.00. If approved we would 
like to request $9,250.00 in advance and $9,250.00 upon completion. 

Page 25



2

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our company is small enough to 
give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are large enough to handle the equipment and labor 
necessary to do the job right and on time! 

Page 26



1

Sylvia Bethel

From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 1:07 PM
To: Sylvia Bethel
Subject: Fw: Preserve Area

----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com> 
To: Jeffery Jackson <jack3177@aol.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023, 11:43:23 AM EDT 
Subject: Preserve Area 

Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  

Thousand Oaks CDD,  
The following is the proposal for the tree trimming at 1034 Center Stone Lane in Riviera Beach. If you should have 
any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  

Tree Trimming Proposal Introduction 

This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary Tree Trimming in an effort to 
maintain the beauty of the property. The goal is to maintain a conspicuous landscape for residents and visitors. 
R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 

Deliverables 

Preserve Area 

 Raising the canopy on all low hanging Live Oak and other Hardwood Trees throughout designated area 
 Intercept all branches protruding toward buildings at lease 10 feet 
 Hurricane prune all Palm trees 
 Trim and reshape Coco Plums 
 Remove any dead or diseased trees or branches 
 Dispose of all existing and generated debris 

Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is: $25,500.00. If approved we would 
like to request $12,750 in advance and $12,750.00 upon completion. 

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our company is small enough to 
give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are large enough to handle the equipment and labor 
necessary to do the job right and on time! 

Page 27



RRusss Totall Lawnn Maintenance

1731 Avenue F
Riviera Beach, FL  33404
United States
john_a_russ@yahoo.com

INVOICE
BBILLL TO

Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District

IINVOICEE # 1957
DDATE 11/06/2023

DDUEE DATE 11/21/2023
TTERMS Net 15

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

BBeautifyy existingg landscape Safely and 
completely 
remove all 
non-native 
vegetation 
throughout 
hedge
Trim and 
manicure 
Hedge 
throughout
Safely trim 
hedge back 
from adjacent 
neighborhood 
barrier
Collect and 
disposed all 
generated 
debris

1 9,000.00 9,000.00

BALANCE DUE $9,000.00

Page 28



Page 29


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District - November 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	October 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Tree Trim Proposals along Congress
	Discussion Regarding Pressure Cleaning of Sidewalk along Congress
	Consider Approval of Preserve/Dry Conservation Area Proposals
	Consider Approval of National Village Fenceline Tree Trim
	Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor




